¢

e

Fourth Session

RESTRICTED

- i _ LIMITED B
GENERAL AGREEMENT ON ) ' _GATT/CP.4/SR=15
TARIFFS AND TRADE | - 3k ek L0,

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

CONTRACTING PARTIES

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FIFTEENTH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, .Geneva,
On Tuesday, 14 March 1950 at 2.30 p.m.
Chairman: Hon. IL.D. WILGRESS (Canada)

Sukjects discussed: 1. Australian Subsidy on.Ammonium
Sulphate - (continued discussion).
(GATT/CP.3/61 and GATT/CP.4/23).

2, 1050 Tariff Negotiations: other
plans and arrangements. .

3. Review of Brazilian internal taxes
(GATT/CP.3/42),

1. Australian Subsidy on Ammonium Sulphate (GATT/CP.3/61 ahd
- GATT/CP.4/23). ' '

Mr. EVANS (United States) said that his delegation had
followed the deliberations with great interest, and had come to

the conclusion tggg this difficult question, involving both
matters of fact/interpretation of provisions of the fgreemen?,
deserved the closest attention hy the Contracting Parties. At
this stage his delegation found it difficult to agree that Aus-
tralia had infringed the provisions of Article I and III of the /1
Agreement; but held the view that concessions granted_by sustralia,
at Geneva, had beexn impaired in a way that Chile might not te ’
reasonably expected to accept. Steps, therefore, should be taken
under Article XXIII 6f the Agreement, which provided for such
cases not necessarily involving any violation of the obligations
a contracting party under the Agreement. ﬁﬁis'delegation, there- 3
fore, supported'the proposeal that a working party should he set
up and entrusted with the tasks of studying the facts in relation
to the provisions of the Agreement. The report of such a working
party would ve valuable in guiding the Contracting Parties in ﬁ
dealing with similar cases in future. o

Mr. DEUTSCH (Canada) was do.btful whether the case came at all
within the p®™view of Articles I or III; in his view it was more
likely to fall under Articles XXIII and XVI. The Working Party
should be asked especizlly to study the provisions of the latter
~rticle in relation to this particular case. It would be useful
if Australia could supply statistical information on its trade in _



GLTT/CP.4/SR.15 _ 1
Fauge 2. ?
' 23t years in the products in question, and on their production.

' Mr. WAIKZR (iLuStralia) replied that the statistics of local
produetion of the two products were not gatisfactory, and could
not be readily supplied. He couid give figures relating to
consumption and importation of the products and further details
would be supplied to the “orking Party if the latter considered
it necessary. 'With-regard te the suggestion that Geneva con-
cessions had been nullified, he felt it reasonahle to say that
chan:zes in such war-time measures as subsidies must have “een en-
\visaged even at Geneva. When the war-time price-control powers
of the Government lapsed, a revision of the existing sutsidies
:ecame necessary., = Such measures were belng reviewed annually and
revisions made from time to time in acoordance with the changing
‘needs of the oountry. In this connection, he would mention that
\even the existing subsidy on immonium Sulphate was to be reviewed
in the course of the present year.

In reply to the Chilean representative, he said that whatever
werds might have been used by the Austraelian representative at the
negotiations 1n Lopdon, ustralla had definitely not accepted
that %t ed infringed any. prov181on of the lLgreement, ‘ut in
,view of the importance attached by Chile to the problem, /ustralia
had agreed to undertake negotiations under Article XXTIII with.a
view to providing a certain degree of satisfacticn for Chile. The
concessions offered by .ustralia were, unfortunately, not aocepted.

Referring to remarks of the Chilean representative at a previou
mzeting, Mr. WAIKER said he had not meant to cast any doubt on the
quality of €hilean Nitrate as a fertili'zer, nor had he implied q
that Nitrate as a fertilizer was intrin31cally inferior to
Ammonium Sulphate. But, the two fertilizers d4id have different
properties making them more suitable for different purposes and
different conditions. The preference in other eeuntries, such as
‘the United Kingdom and Sweden, for one or the other of them was,
therefore, not necessarily relevant. The chisf characteristics
of the two products might be briefly mentioned: Except in the
growing of sugar, nitrate eeuld be used only when mixed with other
fertilizers. In view of the mechanical process of such mixing
account had to be taken of the chemical properties of a fertilizer,
such as its moisture absorbing qualitias and its'readiness to
erystalize. It was clear that a fertilizer had to be chosen with



N

GLTT/CP.4/SR¢15
Page 3.

due regard to the conditions of agriculture, the properties of the
soil, and the nature of the product. Furthermoxe,dthe Chilean
representative had.viewed the question'merely'as one of the oom-
parative benfits to the industries producing the two fertilizersQ
From the . ustralian point of view, however, the abolition or
maintenance of such subsidies had to be decided with regard to
their 1mpact on agricultural deve10pmeni} and it was in the light |
of the needs of Lustralian agriculture that the government had
deeidedjprovisibnally'to withdrdw the subsidy on ome of the pro-
duots, and to retain it on'the other, 1In other words, it wag not
a question of two mutually substitutable fertilizers, but a.
question of the Government's policy with respect to the users of
the two products. The present policy of the Australian Govern-
ment happened to require the discontinuance of the indirect
subsidy on green vegetables which were benefiting_from the fact
that their prices were not controlled. ;

Mr., SH&CKLE (United Kingdom) agreed to the proposal to set
up & working party, believing that this was exactly the type of
question suitable for detailed study by a working group. The
legal quostion involved seemed 'to hinge on two facts, namely,
the extent of'acQual damage Chila was likely to suffer from the
suspension of the subsidy, and the intrinsic values of tpe two
products with respect to their particular use iIn Australia.
Besides these, there might be technical questions in. studying
which the'Working Party would néed help from iﬁdependent techniocal
experts, He would therefore suggest that the F.A.O. be approached
in the first instance and requested to give assistance, |

Mr. CASSI®RS (Belgium) also agreed to the proposal to refer
the question to a working party, and edded that in studying the

~question the working party should not confine its attention to

Article XVI, but also to Article III, paragraph 8 (b) and 9,

Afbecause it was a question of the impaof of subsidies on substitut-

able goods rather than of an impairmest of negotiated benefits.
Reference should also be made to paragraph 1 of Article XI, which
prehibits the use of restrictions other then duties, taxes or
other charges, whether made effective through quotas, benefits or
other measures. '

Mr. ALFONSO (Chile) thought it was necessary for him to re-.
fute certain facts given by the Australian representative.



— conES

'onl _
‘market, and pointed out that if nitrate was not relatlvely sult-

dissentim between Chilean export and Australian import subsidies

GLTT/CP.4/SRil5
Page 4.

Referring to the statement by Australia that the demand for

.nitrate was limited to- industrial purposes, Mr. nLFOFSO said

that ,ustralia was known to have been desirous of obtaining o
nitrate in. great quantities for agrioultural uses, and supported
his argument by quoting from various statements made by lustralian

'representatives at Fou.O‘ meetings, and further illustrated

figures for sustralian import of Chilean nitrate,
| Mr. “LFONSO then emphasized again that his Government was
not asking for a preferential treatment for Chilean nitrdte, but
J that 1t be. given -an ecual opportunity to compete in a free

able for Australian soil, then competition would naturally not
help its sale in that country. The present‘greater demend_ by
Afustrzlian produoers for ammonium sulphate than nitrate could
nct be regarded as indioating_their preference for the former
as it had been made cheaper by the discriminatory subsidy.
Referring to the remarks of the Belgian representative
Mr. LLFONSO pointed out that the unequal treatment accorded to
the two like products clearly interfered with competition, and
hence nullified Australia's undertaking to admit nitrate on a
competitive basis under duty. The actlion clearly alsc contra-
verted the basic principle of most-favoured-nation treatment
embodied in Lrticle I: 1. Furthermore, the spirit of. Lrticle
V1 was not respeoted, although it would not be necessary to go
i‘.nto the details of the provision, Wherever LTtiecle. XXIII: 1 g
(b) referred to "any measure, whether or not it conflicts with
the provisions of this agreement, the case clearly falls under ‘
the latter category."- ' ' | :
Mr. VALKR (Australia) replied that most of the points
mentioned by the Chilean reprzsentative were suitable for detailed
study by.the working party, but he would reply briefly as follows:
It.was.not his imprezsion that the decline in the import of'nitrate
into ‘ustralia was attributable to the abolition of subsidy;
figures showed cleerly that the decline had begun before that
action was taken,. He would further point out that the figures
presented by Chile did not agree with his own data, but this
might be due to the inclusion or exclusion of re-exports or to

owing to the lepse of time for shipments to reach ‘ustralia. The




b

GALTT/CP.4/SR.15 : e
Page 5. : ‘

import of nitrate for industrial uses, as for the manufacture of
other fertilizers, was hever covered by the subsidy designed to
benefit agricultural producers. .

The CH.IRM..N summed up the discussions and suggested a pro-
cedure for the study of this question. Besides the facts in
relation to ;ustralia's trade and production of thg products, and
the, legal implications of the provisions of the ngreement, the
working party might have to study several technical questions,
and for this purpose they might nced to consult with intér—govern-"
mental organizations, He suggested that the Executive Secretary
should, in the first instance, enquire if the F...0. regional '
office attached to the E.C.E. in Geneva had any experts on fertili-
zers, and if not, then other organizations should be apprcached. '
If the Working Party so derired, consultation wifh experts could
be arranged by the Executive Secretary. With regard to the legal
aspects of the question, certain articles of the igreement referred
to in the Chilean declaration (GiATT/CP.4/23), and the representatives
of the United States and Canada had supported the view that dis-
cussion should take place under paragraph 1 of Article XXIII. -

The Working Party, therefore, had to determine whether benefit
aceruing to Chile had been impaired. Other provisions of the.
Lgreement referred to at this discussion were Article XVI, iArticle
I and irticle II: 2 and 4. The applicability of these provisibns
was, however, doubted by certain other representatives.  These,

‘as well as those referred to by the Belgian representative, namely

srticle YXI: 1 and article III: 8 (b) and 9, should also be examined
by the Working Party. Following the precedent of past sessions,
the CH..IRM-N suggested that a small working party consistiné of
5 members should be set up and given sufficiently broad terms of
reference which, he proposed as follows: _ '
"To consider the arguments submitted by the delegations
of iustralia and Chile, with respect to the Australian -
subsidy on ammonium sulphate, and to make appropriate
recommendations to the Contracting Parties with refer-
ence to the relevant provisions of the Agreement"'
In reply to a question by the Chilean representative, the CHLIRM.N
said ihat the Eaecutive Secretary would make an enquiry about the
avaiiébility of experts in Geneva, and would ndtify theAWorkingA
Party what technical assistance could be obtéined.



G..TT/CP. 4/SR 15
.Page 6.

" Mr. EV.NS (United States) suggested that the Working Party
ahould-conslder first whether, and to what extent, it needed
technical assistance before éteps were taken by the Executive
Séqretary'to obtain it, since otherwise a massive amount of
information might be assembled to serve no useful purpose.

- Inreply the CH.IRM.N said it was his urderstanding that

the Executive Secretary should be asked to ascertain whether
sxpert assieflnae was available; the decision as to whether, such
_ assistance'was called for would in any case be made by the Workins
Party itself. : '

The proposal to set up a Working Party, and the proposed
terms of reference having been approved, the CIAIRM.N, with the
concurrence of the meeting, appointed the following contracting
_parties as members of the Working Party:

isustralia United Kingdom Q\
| Chile ' United States
Norway

with Mr. OFTEDAL (Norway) as Chairman,

"2{‘ 1350 Teriff Negotiations: Other Plans and srrangements.

- The dHAIRMAN recalled the discussions on February 27 and 28
when it was agreed that the subject te reverted to after 20, March,
the date set for the reply to the questionnaire relating to
tariff negotiations, Meanwhile, he invited discussion on any
"other points which might be disposed of refore that date,

Mr., IMHOFF (Fecasral Republic of Gormeny) made a statement in
. whieh he made four points: His Government regretted that seotioné“
of the new Germen customs tariff cculd not be supplied to contract-
ing parties until the middle of May; his Guvernment wished to de
allowed the same extersion of time limit to 15 July for submission
of requests on governments requesting concessions from Germany
as those governments. The import equalization law relating to
agricultural products was neither restrictive nor discriminatory
and would be in force only until June 30, 1950, and his Government
might have to ¥§§§Eﬁ its position i1f other countries intended to
inorease their customs tariffs. (The original text of the state-
ment is annexed to this summary record).

Mr. Vun BLLNKENSTEIN (Netherlands) would like to know first,
why the German Foderal Republic could not submit its lists of
requests ty 15 June; as the tariffs of the other countries were






